CCA Board Meeting November 12, 2019

Statutory members: Retired Judge, Joseph H Niemeyer; Hancock County Common Pleas Court, Judge Jonathan P. Starn; Hancock County Common Pleas Court, Reginald J. Routson; Director Hancock County Job and Family Services, Randall Galbraith; Findlay Municipal Court Director of Court Services, Dave Beach; Hancock County Commissioner, Timothy Bechtol; Hancock County Sheriff, Michael Heldman; Hancock County Sheriff's Office, Ryan Kidwell; Findlay Police Department Sgt. Dan Harmon; Juvenile/Probate Court Judge Kristen Johnson; Community Member, Tony Grotrian

Guests: Asst. Chief Probation Officer, Patrick Brzozka; Drug Court Coordinator, Brandy Tiell; Hancock County Adult Probation Officer, Chad McClain; Fiscal Manager, Julie Smith; University of Findlay OT Intern, Molly Wilson; Community Member Carl Etta Capes; A Renewed Mind, Jeff Howell; Family Resource Center, Cayla Fortman; Family Resource Center, Derek Puchta

Call to Order and Approval of Minutes:

Judge Routson called the meeting to order at 5:02 pm.

Judge Routson requested minutes from September 10, 2019 meeting be approved; Sheriff Heldman motioned to approve.

Judge Routson provided an update on Kim Switzer's organ transplant surgery.

Community Corrections Act Updates:

•Web Site: www.co.hancock.oh.us/commonpleas

CCA REPORT

OLD BUSINESS

Assistant Chief Probation Officer, Patrick Brzozka provided the following updates:

• Electronic Monitoring – Will assemble a local committee to review electronic monitoring options. To run the program correctly and thoroughly is very costly. Not only for the equipment but to have staff members on call to respond to issues 24/7. If anyone is interested in being on the electronic monitoring committee, please contact Patrick Brzozka.

NEW BUSINESS

Assistant Chief Probation Officer, Patrick Brzozka provided the following updates:

- •CCA FY19 Annual Report Final Handout; Report will be posted on Common Pleas Court website as well.
- Fiscal Quarterly reports Handout; State is having issues with the uploading process; once those are remedied reports will be uploaded.
- •TCAP Grant Sheriff FY18/19 received \$139,686.87; FY20 \$40,286.00 (to date)
- •Grant Program Activity Handout

Adult Probation Staffing updates/ APA Funds – Patrick Brzozka

- •Hired two probation officers recently, one started on 11/12/19 and the other starts on 11/25/19. We are currently in negotiations with a third officer as well.
- Due to the Adult Parole Authority no longer providing counties with probation services, the State expanded funding to counties without a probation office to start their own programs. Many counties are pulling fully trained officers from other counties.

• Judge Routson added that after speaking with County Commissioners, they are willing to help develop strategies to retain probation officers needed for program.

Drug Court – Brandy Tiell

- •Currently have 29 active participants in Drug Court. We continue to screen referrals. Drug Court Advisory Meeting was held in October. The biggest priority will be to redevelop an alumni group. We are currently looking for past graduates to lead the alumni group.
- •Two of the Probation Officers that left were Drug Court officers. However, we continue to give high level of services to all participants. Treatment Team is working very hard to keep all services. One current officer has shown interest in Drug Court Officer Position. She is currently in training now for that position and a decision will be made shortly. Two staff members will attend the Specialized Docket training later in November.
- Judge Routson inquired on the future funding for Drug Court; Brandy Tiell thought funding was solid.

A Renewed Mind (ARM) – Jeff Howell; Regional Director of Clinical Services

- •ARM continues to provide outpatient services, and some involvement with Drug Court.
- •Continued updates with ARM affiliate Ohio Guidestone, electronic health records, and financial software.
- •Locally, ARM is continuing to work with faith-based organizations.
- •Judge Niemeyer inquired on the Mom's program. Jeff Howell advised that the program has more moms delivering and staying involved in treatment services. Currently have seven pregnant moms involved and 12-13 moms continuing with other services.
- •Tony Grotrian commented the numbers show an improvement. Jeff Howell agreed.
- •Judge Routson asked Brandy Tiell how many drug court participants in involved in the Mom's program. Officer Tiell advised that 2-3 were currently involved.

Family Resource Center (FRC) – Cayla Fortman/Derek Puchta

- Cayla Fortman introduced herself as the Criminal Justice Program Supervisor at FRC; Derek Puchta as Criminal Justice Clinical Supervisor; and Scott Beach as Community Outreach & Diversion Coordinator; will be hiring new QRT coordinator as well.
- •Law Enforcement Assisted Diversion (LEAD) program is funded through the ADAMHS Board grant. The LEAD program will take about a year to implement as they are still in the planning stages. The LEAD program will be for any misdemeanor, nonviolent defendants who are working with City of Findlay Police Department and Probation Office. Additional admission criteria are being considered. Continuing to hire additional staff to implement case management.
- •Judge Routson inquired about Nicole Frankart's new position and if Derek Puchta would continue to be involved in Drug Court. Cayla advised that Nicole is now the Forensic Team Leader. Derek advised he would continue to be engaged with Drug Court participants.
- Judge Routson inquired if he might see new faces at Drug Court staffing. Derek Puchta advised yes, FRC would be looking to fill Nicole's old position.
- Patrick Brzozka inquired on legislation to expand the Pink Slip Law to include substance abuse to the criteria per the recommendation of NAMI of Ohio President. Cayla Fortman responded that she cannot speak to that. Derek Puchta added that Ginny Williams and Aeryn Williams are working on the On-Call program and services.
- Judge Niemeyer asked if the Hancock Count Sheriff's Department is involved in Law Enforcement Assisted Diversion. Cayla responded that right now just City of Findlay Police Department, but to expand.
- •Judge Starn asked if the City of Findlay law director was on board with the program. Cayla stated that he is on board but there needs to be more discussions.

County Criminal Justice Business

- •Systems Process Analysis subcommittee Judge Routson stated that the last meeting had discussions regarding charging practices and decisions. So far there have been very good discussions and comments regarding splitting cases out between entities depending on severity of case. Next meeting to be determined.
- Judge Starn added that some cases start at misdemeanor level but include felony charges, those cases move over to Common Pleas Court with the misdemeanor charges most likely are dissolved if the felony is charged. More efficient option could be to have these cases in Common Pleas Court rather than two separate courts.
- Jail study Captain Kidwell stated that preliminary outcomes were reviewed in October. Mainly focused on jail and justice assessment, however moving towards leads assessment. Preliminary report shows that a total of 200
- 225 beds are needed. Looking forward to meeting with courts regarding these outcomes in the near future.
- •Judge Routson asked if Commissioner Bechtol had anything to add. Commissioner Bechtol commented that the assessment is headed in the right direction. Assessors noted how impressed they were with all aspects that are contributed to jail population being lower for example diversion and treatment.
- Judge Routson asked for Sheriff Heldman's opinion. Sherriff Heldman stated that he is very pleased with assessors.
- Judge Routson stated that the program Welcome to a New Life seems to be very committed to re-entry. Adult Probation Department and Sheriff's Office have offered to provide training to their mentors.

Juvenile/Probate Court – Judge Johnson

- Eighty-five children are currently in foster care.
- Family Dependency Court has had three or four graduations.
- Juvenile/Probate Court will temporarily be moving to 122 Jefferson St.
- Juvenile/Probate Court is working to develop a new program collaborating with Millstream.
- Juvenile law has changed the expungement age; now increased to 28.

Findlay Municipal Court Updates – Dave Beach

•Added Probation Officer, Corey Glick, to Probation Staff. Officer Glick is currently working to integrate GPS, Scram, interlock, etc. He will also continue with CIT program.

Hancock County Common Pleas Updates – Judge Routson/Judge Starn

- Judge Routson stated that caseloads would near or equal last year's numbers.
- •Judge Starn added that cases are taking longer to get through the process. Does not see the number of cases going down, also stated that violent offenses seem to be higher.

Legislative issues/updates - Judge Routson

- •Reagan Tokes Act Return of indefinite sentencing; minimum and maximum terms given for prison sentences. Plans to improve Post Release Control (PRC) will be the focus of second part of this act.
- •Senate Bill 3 A proposal to turn low-level drug felonies into misdemeanors. Judge Starn added that State of Ohio Governor seems adamant that he will not sign any bill like this. Stated that something will come of Senate Bill 3 but most likely not as broad.

Next Meeting Date Tuesday, March 10, 2020 5:00 pm at Hancock County Courthouse Meeting adjourned @ 5:50 pm by Judge Routson

Action Items:

EM committee set up - Patrick Brzozka